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Sign Locations By Order of Placement

Sign Number and Name

# 03 - Sunnyside School

# 04 - Stringtown School

# 05 - Union School

# 06 - Germantown

# 06 - Germantown

#07 - Liberty School

# 11 - Bethel Church

#12 - Maple Grove School

# 13 - Fairview School

# 14 - Shiloh School

# 15 - Burr Oak School

#16 - Lincoln School

# 17 - Wheeling

# 18 - Caloma

#19 - Durham

#20 - English Settlement

# 21 - Homs Ferry

# 22 - Bamett Coal Co.

#23 - Elm Grove School
#25 - Pleasant Ridge School
# 26 - Spring Hill School

# 27 - Fee School

#28 - Pleasant Ridge School
# 29 - Caloma School

# 30 - Bethel Reformed Church
#31 - Battle Ridge School

# 32 - Mount Olive Church

# 33 - Pleasant Ridge Church
# 34 - Franklin Center School
#35 - Stickle Bridge

#35 - Stickle Bridge

# 36 - Brownlee School

# 1 - Stringtown Road
#2 - Long Lane
# 8 - The Crooked Road

Latitude

N 41 19.237"
N 41 23.136'
N 41 24.006'
N 41 14.050'
N 41 13.902'
N 41 17.077"
N 41 24.017"
N 41 17.923'
N 41 23.112'
N 41 12.604'
N 41 16.852'
N 41 19.322'
N 41 25.240'
N 41 16.636'
N 41 19.222'
N 41 18.469'
N 41 21.699'
N 41 17.744'
N 41 12.278'
N 41 15.979'
N 41 15.565'
N 41 19.687'
N 41 19.245'
N 41 15.961'
N 41 27.940'
N 41 27.103'
N 41 16.854'
N 41 16.834'
N 41 17.928'
N 41 16.919'
N 41 16.785'
N 41 17.493'

Longitude
W 93 13.959'
W 93 14.205'
W 93 08.312'
W 93 18.559'
W 93 18.556'
W 93 01.998'
W 93 09.025'
W 93 08.261'
W 93 05.500'
W 92 57.673'
W 93 09.690'
W 93 10.595'
W 93 17.974'
W 93 18.559'
W 92 57.331'
W 92 58.601'
W 92 58.162'
W 93 01.129'
W 93 07.102'
W 93 11.340'
W 93 06.790'
W 93 07.626'
W 93 18.558'
W 93 18.545'
W 92 56.876'
W 92 58.045'
W93 10.311"
W 93 10.558'
W 93 16.307"
W 93 12.835'
W 93 12.823'
W 93 05.991'

#9 - Elevator Road

# 10 - Johnnycake Road

# 24 - Round Barn Road

=
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B-3
B-3
A3
A3
D-1
D-1
B-3
B-3
A3
A3
A3
B-3

Listed above are the approximate geographic coordinates for the signs shown on the map.
Because of the difference in accuracy of various GPS units and different coordinate systems,
these coordinates may not lead directly to the specific sign but should get you close.

Marion County GIS/IT Department

gis@marioncountyiowa.gov

For information, call Charlotte Shivvers (641.842.4259) or Will Prather (641.842.2740)
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29. Caloma School: Awell can still be found on the school yard but the building disappeared
years ago. The fown of Caloma was nearby. Closed 1959. Location: SW of Jct of Pioneer St. and 20th PI.

30. Bethel Reformed Church: With 33 charter members, it was started by First Reformed
Church of Pella. Many others in the neighborhood became members over the years. The Bethel
Reformed Ladies Aid confinued to meet several years after the demise of the building. 1866-1937
Location: NW of Jct of 210th Ave. and Coolidge Street.

31. Battle Ridge School: Was built on an acre purchased from Mrs. A. P. Hasselman and J.
Schippers in 1870. Former students have held several reunions. A two-volume history of the
school may be found at the Pella Historical Village. Closed 1960. Location: 1998 Dubugue St.

32. Mount Olive Church: Was built in 1893 by a local contractor and people in the
community. It was dedicated by Dr. Mill from lowa City, assisted by Rev. Vorhees of Dallas. A
reed organ and choir provided music. The pastor was often shared with the Dallas church. The
church was closed in 1928 with members going to the Dallas Methodist Church. A Sunday school
was started in 1932 for the local children but the church was closed again after a few years. In
the summer of 1952, pastors from Dallas, Melcher and Knoxville led activities at Mt. Olive, but in
the late 1950s it was forn down and the lumber used to remodel a home in Dallas. Location:
NW Corner of Jct of 92nd Ave. and Perry Street.

33. Pleasant Ridge Christian Church: Started in the homes of local residents in the late
1860s. Around 1872, the congregation moved into the Hunker Ridge School, a log building near
what was later the Burr Oak School. In 1873 a proper building was erected. Later the church split
with some members meeting in the Empire School House and others in the Pleasant Ridge School
house. The building was razed in 1942. Location: SW of Comer across from Pleasant Ridge
Cemetary on Perry Street.

34. Franklin Center School: As on many school yards there was a shed for the ponies that
students rode to school. One day when a windstorm came up, the roof was blown off the shed;
later the ponies were found, sfill tied up and standing on the shed roof!  Former student Darrell
Gifford has contributed several stories about his experiences here. Find them in a binder at the
school museum in the Marion County Park. Closed 1955. Location: 403 Newbold Street.

35. Stickle Bridge, Whitebreast Creek, Mulky Mills and the 1853 Wagon Trail:
One legend says Whitebreast was named by Native Americans o honor a bear with a white patch
onifs chest. Unfortunately for those who like fo see history, in the 1930's Whitebreast was straightened
away from the high curved sandstone banks southeast of the bridge. Though it still flows east to
join the Des Moines River and Lake Red Rock, it does not resemble the Creek that ran the Mulky
Mills and stopped the 1853 wagon train.

Stickle Bridge, named for an early neighborhood family, was built in 1898 and was replaced by
o high-frame steel bridge when the creek was straightened in the early 1930’s. History records
that in 1872, two people drowned while trying to cross Mulky Ford. The current bridge is from the
1980's.

The Mulky Mills built by 6.Z. Mulky and Sarah Schlotterback Mulky of Indiana in 1849 was in the
bend of the old creek. The sawmill was constructed of material transported by oxen from Keokuk.
The first in the areq, it averaged 2,500 feet/day. Next came a grist mill which provided commeal
for patrons from 30 miles around until a flood in 1851 required a rescue by canoe and destroyed
both mills. Later, in 1853, a wagon train was stranded on the bluffs above Whitebreast where
they wintered over. Disease, perhaps measles or pneumonia, left eleven dead. One grave was
inscribed “Elizabeth P. Glenn, died March 1853, 9 days old.” A little over 100 years later o man
named Glenn came to the farm and asked for the “Glenn Cemetery.”  Marcus Stickle showed him
the site and helped him use his cement mix to make headstones for the other graves.

36. Brownlee School: This school stands on ifs original site. Whenever the creek below the
school flooded, some parents were forced to take their children to Knoxville and retum by another
1600 Block of 130th Place.
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1. Stringtown Road: The name suggests that there was once a fown along this road. However,
there was never a cluster of homes, only single farm houses strung out along the road. Hence the
name Stringtown. Locations: (East end) G-40 off Hwy 14 & (West end) G-40 East of 50th Place.

2. Long Lane Road: According to local lore in the horse and buggy days it resembled a dirt
lane that strefched forever, thus a long lane. Actual distance is six miles. Locations: G-76 East
of Hwy 14 & 6-76 off Van Buren Dr.

3. Sunnyside School: Nestled in a valley at the bottom of four hills, Sunnyside began in the
mid 1800's a quarter mile west. In 1939, it moved down the hill into a new building that provided
the three R's plus music, art, Christmas programs, and community center. Students enjoyed the
outdoors most, from coasting the hills to pole-vaulting over Hawk Run Creek and walking the
nature fours led by dedicated teachers. Closed 1949. Location: Jct. 60th Ave and McKimber St.

4. Stringtown School: Along with all but two other schools in Pleasant Grove Township, it
was consolidated into the Pleasantville school district in the fall of 1915. Familiar names of its
country school teachers include Spalti, De Witt, Billingsley, and Worthington. Closed in 1915.
Location: G-40, 0.75 miles east of 50th Place.

5. Union School: Union school with 8 windows on its west side was a local landmark for many
years. Much to the disappointment of former students who still live in the area, the school
deteriorated so much that the landowner burnt it down in the fall of 2009. Closed 1954.
Location: G-40 Jct. with 110th Ave.

6. Germantown: This was a small settlement composed primarily of German immigrants. This
is also the location of St. Paul’s Evangelical Church with a cemetery to the north. Horstman School,
sometimes called Germantown School, was built on land owned by the Horstman family. They
donated the land for the church in 1872. Location: 20th Place South of Rutledge St.

7. Liberty School: Located in Knoxville Township, it served the children of many coal mining
and form families in the area. Inthe 1920's it had a very large school age population necessitating
the building of a two room structure. The earliest record of feachers dates back to 1868. Closed
1958. Location: Jct. of Oregon Dr. and 165th Ave.

8. Crooked Road: Once a sfate route from Knoxville to Dallas this is indeed a crooked road
with 22 tums. In the early days of seftlement, roads often followed ridges and avoided slicing
through homesteading claims, creating many twists and turns. Unlike many such roads this one
was never straightened. There are eight signs marking the route from east to west. Locations:
(East End) Jct. Newbold St and Nixon St. & (West End) Jct. 60th Ave and Rutledge St.

9. Elevator Road: A familiar name fo area residents. As a little girl one of them thought it
was so named because of its steep hills that went up and down like an elevator. It's actually a
reference to the grain elevators on the south end of Pella. Locations: Jct. T-17 and Hwy 163 &
Jct. T-17 and Keokuk Dr.

10. Johnny Cake Road: It was just a narrow and hilly lover’s lane until Bobbie Kocur called
aftention to it by writing and recording the song “Johnny Cake Road.” Johnny cakes made with
commeal were a common food of the pioneers. Why the food is associated with this road is a
mystery. Locations: Jct. Hwy 5 and Utah Dr. & Jct. T-23 and Utah Dr.

11. Bethel Church: This church was established in 1882 when Mary and R. R. Stevenson
transferred an acre of ground for the 30x40 building which was constructed in 1883. In the late
1890’s a nucleus of 4 large families each with 9 to 10 children made up the congregation. During
WW it was the township center for holding Red Cross Drives and purchase of War Bonds. A small
brick chapel was builtin 1931and in the late 1930°s the Church Conference gave it to the township.
The brick chapel is now gone and the current building is a community meeting place. 1883-1938.
Location: Jct. 6-40 and 105th Ave.

12. Maple Grove School: It started in a log cabin in 1860. A former Knoxville Principal,
J. R. Young, began his teaching career as a country school teacher at this school. Closed 1950.
Location: Jct. Newbold St and 110th Ave.

13. Fairview School: Located in Polk Township, it was one of six by that name in the county.
In 1922 there must have been a “fair view” from every window as there were 55 trees on the
school yard. The school building still stands on its original site and is used for hay storage. Closed
1953. Location: 135th Ave one-mile south of Hayes Dr.

14. Shiloh School: A two-story building that was one of the largest country schools in the
county. It was built fo accommodate an influx of coal mining families. It was a progressive district
electing two women fo serve on its board of directors decades before women were given the right
to vote. Closed 1953. Location: Jct. Hwy 5 and 202nd Place.

15. Burr Oak School: In 1877 Gov. Stone came to address the students on “the issues of the
day.” Former Collins Hospital Administrator, Helen Ward Roberts was hired to keep order in 1926.
She held a pie supper to raise funds to buy curtains, a good teacher’s desk, and a four bumer
kerosene stove to prepare hot lunches. Closed 1946. Location: Jct. 94th Place and Perry St.

16. Lincoln School: The building is in its original location and has been converted info
o home. In 1877 there were 63 students. Early school boards preferred to hire men teachers
whenever there were large numbers of students as they felt a man’s size gave him an edge in
maintaining discipline. Closed 1958. Location: Jct. 92nd Ave and McKimber St.

17. Wheeling: An old town named after Wheeling, West Virginia, it was surveyed in 1851. It
had a post office from 1852-1884, a blacksmith shop, school and the first Methodist Profestant
Church in the county. In 1875 there was a population of 175. As people left, most buildings from
the little hamlet were moved to Swan or Pleasantville and the church was converted into a bam.
Location: North of Pleasantville at the SE Jct. of Hwy 5 and Geneva Dr.

18. Caloma: An old town that had its post office housed in the general merchandise store from
1858-1907. There was also a blacksmith shop, barbershop and a doctor’s office. In the 1870’
o hotel served as a stagecoach stop. In 1912 it had a population of 25. Location: Jct. Perry St.
and 20th Place.

19. Durham: This old town was laid out as a station on the Chicago, Burlington, and Quincy
Railroad in 1875. Originally called Merrill, in 1877 it was renamed Durham in honor of early
settler David Dutham. The town once had a hotel, post office, blacksmith shop, creamery, doctor’s
office, two general stores and a school. In 1912 it had a population of 100. Location: West of
Hwy T-17 and north of McKimber Street.

20. English Settlement: An early settlement that extended on both sides of English Creek, it
had a post office from 1850-1878. 6.6. Harsin, and D. T. and F. T. Dutham were among its earliest
settlers. It was considered to be one of the most reputable neighborhoods in the early days.
Location: NE of Jct. 195th Place and Nebraska Drive.

21. Horn's Ferry: Operated from 1865 to 1881, it was replaced by the Horn’s Ferry Bridge in
1882. This bridge was one of the county’s first river crossings and the first wagon bridge over the
Des Moines River. A section of the bridge collapsed on the night of Aug. 1, 1992. There are observation
points on both sides of the river. Location: Both side of the Des Moines River on 198th PI.

22. Barnett Coal Co: Operated from 1936 to 1947 by the Bamett family. Mine Number 3
was opened in 1938 by Kendall and Doug Bamett, sons of Juck Bamett, on land owned by the
family. Jack Bamett and his sons and son-in-law, Scott Wilson, operated this mine until 1947.
Location: 1741 Newbold Drive.

23. Elm Grove School: Like other war time teachers Lois Akins remembers having to register
district families for ration books. As a teacher with 30 years experience teaching in a town school,
she sfill feels country schools provided a better education experience. Location: NE of Jct 6-76
and 120th Avenue.

24. Round Barn Road: The name comes via the round barn on Rutledge St. It is privately
owned and not open for fouring. The barn was built in 1911 and is 76' round. Location: From
town of Dallas, east on Rutledge St.60th Ave to 80th Avenue.

25. Pleasant Ridge School: This school was built in 1874. Some time after closing, the
school was moved to the Marion Country Historical Village and restored. It contains period furnishings
and several hinders of pictures and information about Marion County country schools. Location:
On 80th Ave north of Polk Street.

26. Spring Hill School: Dixie Comell Gebhardt, designer of the lowa flag faught at this school
in 1886. Ninety-three students were enrolled in this school in 1892. Fortunately they didn't all
atfend every day. Location: NE of Jct Highway 14 and Pratt Drive.

27. Fee School: This school which is on its original site was remodeled into a home in 1958.
It was once equipped with an underground storm cellar in case of a tomado. An 1877 Journal
reported "The last day of school was the place to go for a square meal with 50 bringing food to
satisfy the cravings of the inner man, chicken, pies, and cakes from the home larder." Location:
1300 Block of 118th Place.

28. Pleasant Ridge School: Located in the northwest comer of Franklin fownship this was
The foundation of this school is till visible. Closed 1939. Location: NE of Jct of McKimber St.
and 20th Place.
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